
 
 
 

October 17, 2022 

 

 

ADDENDUM NUMBER 001 

SOLICITATION NUMBER: 361334  

 

Proposals are to be prepared in accordance with the instructions and conditions set forth herein.  Proposals 
are to be received by 4:30 P.M. Pacific Daylight Time on 10/20/2022. 

 

Pre-Tender Queries & HMIS Responses / Questions and Answers 

1. What is the lead time for each individual project? Example: wanting a 3-minute video produced... 
from the time that we receive the order, how long do we have to successfully produce the final 
product? Are we able to schedule shoot dates and times or are those dictated at the sole discretion 
of the buyer (HMIS)? For video projects, typical notice for a project will be 1-2 weeks in advance. 
For the monthly newsletter, the subcontractor will usually have 1.5-2 weeks turnaround for the 
project each month. However, it varies depending on what the calendar looks like, holidays, etc. 
For other projects, the lead time it will depend on the request and/or requirements of DOE. Shoot 
dates, times and locations will be coordinated through HMIS. 

2. What are the insurance requirements for my company? Do you have a list of required coverages? 
They are listed in the Special Provisions, On-Site Section 10.0 (Attachment 03). 

3. Due to the short timeframe before award of this contract, what would be the required bond amount 
in lieu of providing an audited financial report? A bond in the amount equal to the full expected 
contract value can be used in lieu of audited financial report(s) if necessary.  The subcontractor 
could also provide unaudited financials, with income statements and balance sheets for 3 years and 
a representative of the company would need to certify that the documents are accurate and complete 
to the best of their knowledge. 

4. As we will provide all services in house, how do you require labor categories laid out? In most 
cases, we will only have a fixed price per service. What do you need specifically? We need the 
specific labor categories used, as we will be sending over a work order requests for each Task Order 
Release.  The subcontractor will estimate the number of hours required, per labor category, for 
tasks needed throughout the subcontracting period.  If you have fixed prices for each level of service 
identified in the Subcontract Statement of Work, please indicate these prices in your proposal, and 
any parameters that may apply (i.e., brochure cost is valid up to 20 pages, from 20-50 pages price 
is "x", etc.). 

5. Will this contract be Washington Sales Tax exempt? This type of services that are being requested 
are not subject to Washington state sales tax. 

6. Will members of my team that work on-site for shoots and meetings need to make a special trip for 
security clearance / badging?  If there are locations that require badging for access, the 
subcontractor will be required to go to badging and complete necessary paperwork to gain access. 



 
 

7. HMIS has the option to extend the service contract for an additional four years. Does that option to 
extend require both parties to sign off? Yes. 

8. Should HMIS extend the contract, may we assume an increase of 3% per year? The subcontract is 
being awarded based on lowest price technically acceptable.  It is at the bidder’s discretion how 
they choose to price the option years. 

9. Do you have any examples of completed projects that are similar to what is being requested in the 
RFP? Specifically, we would be interested in seeing newsletters/brochures and finished video 
productions. Monthly Newsletter: https://hmis.hanford.gov/page.cfm/News/MonthlyNewsletter. 
Traffic Safety Video: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=2wK1Ge9gciE. Traffic Safety Video: 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=-nKcfB2eUvk.  

10. If we use any second-tier subcontractors, do we need to break out their hourly cost if so? There 
should be firm fixed rates listed for each specialty/category that would be used per task outlined in 
the Statement of Work.  There is a requirement to identify the percentage of work that a lower tier 
will be performing in Exhibit 002. 

11. We see the request for a list of projects that are similar in scope to this RFP. As we have not 
produced projects specifically for government contracts, may we use other projects that are similar 
in scope? Yes. 

12. It appears that based on each project type that HMIS may elect to award portions of the overall 
RFP to different subcontractors. If we bid on the entire RFP, may we only be awarded a portion of 
the overall contract? HMIS reserves the right to split the award to several subcontractors. 

13. We typically include one round of re-edits on creative projects and video projects. Is this acceptable 
to HMIS? Do we need to provide pricing for additional edits in case they are needed? Expect 2 – 4 
rounds of edits.  (By the time we get to round 4 it would be something minor like adding a missed 
comma.) 

14. Can you provide us with a clear scope of work? I was having a hard time distinguishing what this 
RFP was exactly for. You should see clear requirements in Section 1.3 – Description of Work-
Specific in the Statement of Work (Solicitation Documents – Attachment 02 – Statement of 
Work).  It lists out exactly what we are looking for.  There are some print & signage requirements, 
some videography and photography. 

 

Thank you for your participation.  HMIS looks forward to your response. 

 

Please acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 001 with your proposal.  

Thank you, 

 

 

Contract Specialist 
Rhonda Roueché 
(509) 373-4082 
Rhonda_R_Roueche@rl.gov  
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